Village of Lemont
Planning and Zoning Commission
Regular Meeting of July 18, 2018

A regular meeting of the Planning and Zoning Consiois for the Village of Lemont was held
at 6:30 p.m. on Wednesday, July 18, 2018 in therskfloor Board Room of the Village Hall,
418 Main Street, Lemont, lllinois.

CALL TO ORDER

A. Pledge of Allegiance

Chairman Spinelli called the meeting to order 8il.m. He then led the Pledge of
Allegiance.

B. Verify Quorum

Upon roll call the following were:
Present: Cunningham, McGleam, O’Connor, Plahme&a) Spinelli
Absent: Glomp

Economic and Community Development Director JasermyB Community
Development Director, Mark Herman, Consulting PEmiamie Tate, and Village
Trustee Ron Stapleton were also present.

C. Approval of Minutes — June 20, 2018

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner Zolecki to
approve the minutes from the June 20, 2018 meetithgno changes. A voice vote
was taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

CHAIRMAN’'S COMMENTS

Chairman Spinelli greeted the audience and sai@ tlvere three public hearings this
evening and one action item on the agenda. Heasleed everyone in the audience
to please stand and raise his/her right hand. hele administered the oath.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. 18-10 RUSSO SALT SUPPLY, LLC SPECIAL USE

Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to open tlubl hearing.



Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ssioner Cunningham to
open the public hearing for Case 18-10. A voiceweas taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Staff Presentation

Jamie Tate, Consulting Planner, said Eric AdanRRusfso Salt Supply, LLC is
requesting a special use to allow for the offlogdand storage of de-icing salt located
at 16500 Des Plaines River Road. Material stoekpalre a special use within the
Canal Overlay District and considered on a casealsg basis. Staff is
recommending approval.

The subject property is owned by Metropolitan Wéteclamation District (MWRD).
On June 2, 2005, MWRD awarded a 39 year lease BLAG ansportation Services,
LLC on approximately 28 acres of MWRD property ltathat 15900 Des Plaines
River Road. The site contains a barge slip and IAG&es the site for loading and
unloading barges and storing shipping containéise Lease allows ACBL to
sublease, subject to MWRD’s prior written conseACBL has requested permission
to sublease an 8.1 acre portion of its leasehoddiiding a portion of the barge slip to
Russo Salt Supply, LLC for a period of five yeavith the option to renew the
sublease for another five years. Russo propodeadoand unload barges, and to
receive, store and distribute bulk and packagedymts, including salt, stone, sand
and mulch. The applicant is present tonight amdatarify if it is just salt or if they
are looking for more. In conjunction with such ogg@ns, Russo intends to construct
a salt pad and surrounding berm. They intend ltovidbest industry practices for
handling and storing salt on the subleased porimtyding covering any stored salt
with a tarp. Mrs. Valone stated MWRD did approle sublease request in June of
2018.

The applicant will be unloading de-icing salt offshipping barges located on the
Des Plaines River and temporarily storing the nmlten-site. As orders come in,
trucks will haul the material off-site to varioueats throughout the Midwest. Not
all of the material will move directly from the lgga to trucks, therefore outdoor
storage is a part of the request. The applicamstated that the maximum height of
the salt storage pile will be 25 feet tall and Bid Zoning District allows buildings
up to 35 feet in height. Primary operations frdms site will take place from
September to April each calendar year. Busineasshare expected to be Monday
through Friday 6am — 3 pm each weekday with ococasipeak times extending past
these hours. The total workforce at the propergxpected to be 3-6 employees.

Mrs. Tate then read through the standards for apase and staff found that the
requested special use meets the applicable standArditem to discuss is that in
2009 there was a similar request that came thréargihis location for salt storage



and other storage as well. The Plan Commissiottodik at it and did put the

following conditions on the special use:

1. Cover the materials with tarps and the tarps nmersiaim in good condition and be
a uniformed color.

2. ACBL would also be responsible for the proper hemyjlstorage, and/or disposal
of materials on site.

The applicant is also present tonight to answercum®@stions.

Commissioner McGleam asked what kind of buildingpits would be required for
this.

Mrs. Tate said it would be site development pernigist before salt storage pad.

Commissioner McGleam asked if there were any requiPA permits for salt
storage.

Mrs. Tate stated that might be a question for pjieant. She is aware that the EPA
has regulations for it but she is not sure if thaye a permit process.

Mr. Berry, Economic and Community Development Dicgcsaid the applicant has
to get a WMO permit from MWRD.

Chairman Spinelli asked if the Village Engineer \gasg to be looking at the
concrete block containment wall to see if it regsia structural evaluation.

Mrs. Tate stated she is sure that he will be loglinit through the site development
process. The Village Engineer or the Fire Marsthialinot have any further
comments at this time. However, through the peteswill be looking at the site
development permit.

Chairman Spinelli asked if the Commissioners hadfarther questions for staff at
this time. None responded. He then asked thacapplto come up and make a
presentation.

Applicant Presentation

Kevin Coyne, Attorney for the applicant, said staéfs very thorough and appreciates
their support. They do not have much to add beifpaesent this evening to answer
any questions that the Commission might have. apipicant is in agreement with
the conditions from 2009 relative to the tarp. Téguest is for de-icing salt only and
all necessary permits will be achieved. The caedoock containment wall will be
six to eight feet high. The applicant is also préghis evening to answer any
guestions.



Chairman Spinelli asked to confirm that the appiarawas for salt only. He asked
the applicant if the Commission does put a resbncon the special use for salt only
would he have any objections to it.

Eric Adams, applicant, stated he would not.

Commissioner McGleam asked if he could explain hlosvbusiness works in regards
to receiving the salt in the summer for preparaf@rwinter.

Mr. Adams said each year it varies a little. Tyl you receive the salt sometime in
the fall and then you tarp it. You deliver it arice the season hits. They will
receive the salt by barge, and then unload it astlexcavator. They will truck it to
the pile and a frontend loader will stock it.

Commissioner McGleam asked if they will be usingane.

Mr. Adams stated no.

Chairman Spinelli asked if they are required toNleDES Permit and if so who will
be the permit holder.

Mr. Coyne said they are still working with enginegron that, but if they are
required then they will get it.

Commissioner McGleam asked if staff can talk abbet2009 special use.

Mrs. Tate stated the special use will be givenusde for the salt pile, but it will also
hold ACBL responsible for Russo’s actions.

Commissioner McGleam asked if they would have tinldbe lease agreement.
Mrs. Tate said it was part of the motion in 2009.

Chris Shepherd, ACBL, stated at that time they vileeeapplicant themselves and
they were going to operate the facility.

Commissioner McGleam asked if they were going teelhthat condition in their
sublease agreement.

Mr. Shepherd said yes.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furtheesjions for the applicant. None
responded. He then asked if there was anyoneiautlience that wanted to speak in
regards to this public hearing.

Public Comment




Robert Barnes, General Manager for lllinois MarTimaving, They own and operate
the adjacent barge slip that is next to the sulgemperty. They are not opposing this
but they do have some concerns since salt canrbesoe. They received the notice
on Friday, July 8, and turned it over to people who do researclthiem and have

not received anything back yet. There are othalhtias that have salt down by them
which don't affect them; however, they are furtheray from them. They would like
to express their concern for their equipments his understanding that they did
oppose the petition in 2009, but is not sure why.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there was anyone elsaeraudience that wanted to speak
in regards to this public hearing. None respondéd.then called for a motion to
close the public hearing.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ssioner Cunningham to
close the public hearing for Case 18-10. A voiotewvas taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Plan Commissioner Discussion

Chairman Spinelli said he was on the Commissiaz0PO and does not recall the
objection.

Mr. Shepherd stated there is a significant diffeeebetween the proposed facility and
what was proposed in 2009. One is the size ofdtiéty. There was a contract for
50,000 tons of salt at that time and there couleel@een as much as 300,000 tons.
They were asking to use the whole property whichld/dave gone right up to

lllinois Marine Towing. Russo is planning on bgion the furthest part of the
property. The size of the facility is much smaller. Adams is proposing 50,000
tons. There were also different holding facilitieat were proposed.

Commissioner Zolecki said he felt that they shawdtinclude the second condition
and that it does not apply here.

Chairman Spinelli stated he agrees also. He askieere were any further
comments or questions. None responded. He tHiel dar a motion for
recommendation.

Plan Commission Recommendation

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ssioner Cunningham to
recommend to the Mayor and Board of Trustees appahCase 18-10 with the
following conditions:

1. The Special Use is for salt only.



2. To cover all areas with tarps, which all tarps mrestain in good condition at all
times and be uniformed in color.

A roll call vote was taken:

Ayes: McGleam, Cunningham, Zolecki, O’Connor, Raspinelli

Nays: None

Motion passed

Findings of Fact

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner O’Connor to
authorize the Chairman to approve the Findingsaat For Case 18-10 as prepared by
staff. A voice vote was taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

B. 18-09 13610 ELIZA LANE DRIVEWAY VARIATION

Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to open Ca8€09.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ssioner Zolecki to open
the public hearing for Case 18-09. A voice votes vaken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Staff Presentation

Jamie Tate, Consulting Planner, said Elliot Sl@sat Nina Godlewski, owners of the
subject property are requesting a variation torattonstruction of a residential
driveway wider than code allows with greater frgatd lot coverage than allowed in
the UDO. The subject property is zoned R-4 Sirederily Detached Residential
District. All driveway widths in residential zorgrdistricts shall not exceed 22 feet at
the lot line and driveway apron. From the lot lideveway width may gradually be
increased to accommodate entry into garages. Kevdtlot coverage may not
exceed 36% of required area in the front yard.

The driveway as built, and with the requested v@ama is greater than 36% as the
code stands today. The PZC reviewed and appraveg@dated way to calculate
front and rear lot coverage on June 20, 2018. UB® amendment goes before the
Village Board on July 23, 2018 to vote on adoptidithe UDO amendment is
approved, the proposed driveway does not go oeecdlculated front yard lot
coverage maximum of 36%, but is still in violatiohthe maximum width
requirement.



Mrs. Tate stated on March 21, 2017 the propertyssvgnbmitted a building permit
application to replace their existing driveway witéivers and the work was to be
performed by Elemental Landscaping. The permit agsoved on March 23, 2017
with several notes highlighting the UDO requirenseliotr driveways in residential
zoning districts. The previous asphalt driveway \@pproximately 29 feet at the
garage doors and tapered to 22 feet at the loalkedriveway curb cut. The
homeowners claim they were shown a different sket¢he driveway by their
contractor, in conflict with the Village approvedrmit drawing. At the time of
inspection, the Building Inspector, closed outpkemit even though it was noted
constructed not as approved. Given several optibesgproperty owners desire to go
ahead with a variation request rather than briegdifiveway into compliance with
the UDO.

Mrs. Tate then read through the three standardgafeations which are listed in
staff's report. The UDO requires that the applicd@monstrate consistency with all
three of the variation standards. Staff found #ilthe standards for variations are
not substantially met. The applicant is preser@n®wer any questions.

Chairman Spinelli asked with applications like tiges the Village inspector go out
and approve the curb cut. He asked if there istgpgy of inspection before they are
permitted to cut public curb.

Mr. Berry said yes.

Chairman Spinelli stated when he looks at the pecitulooks like they cut it to the
full width which was incorrect.

Mr. Berry said that is correct and he does notkttivat was inspected. The
contractor did not call for inspection so it waspgacted after the installation.

Commissioner McGleam asked if the contractor wapsasented this evening.
Mrs. Tate stated no.

Commissioner McGleam asked if he was still licengedo work in Lemont.
Mr. Berry said he would look into that.

Discussion continued in regards to what the Village do with contractors that don’t
follow permits.

Commissioner McGleam asked for staff to explain hb&permit was closed out.
Mrs. Tate stated from what she knows it was clasédn error.

Commissioner McGleam said he is trying to determwhere the mistake was made.



Mrs. Tate stated it was noted that it was not hollv it was supposed to be.

Commissioner O’Connor said it was noted on March2z2d7. He asked so how did
we get to this point today.

Mr. Herman, Community Development Manager, stabedtspection was in
October of 2017, but he does not have specifite asat that note said.

Mr. Berry said it is not unusual especially if tt@ntractor does not call for a final.
About every six months they start pulling themee svhat is happening. The Code
Enforcement Officer went out and saw that this wae not built as approved and
then he alerted the Building Commissioner. Sithes tstaff has been working with
the homeowners.

Commissioner Zolecki asked if there were any figesed to the contractor.

Mr. Berry stated not at this time.

Commissioner McGleam said not only did the contranbt build it to the approved
permit; they also had cut a public right-of-waylzwithout a permit.

Chairman Spinelli stated they need to find waysitdke sure contractors like this are
not permitted to work in this town.

Commissioner McGleam asked why they have the requ® feet curb cut from
planning and aesthetics standpoint.

Mrs. Tate said she would say it has to do witheseald not having this massive curb
cut into the driveway. Lot widths vary and thiadiof keeps it at a standard size.

Mr. Berry stated at one point the 29 feet curbveas allowed. The issue that is
happening now is there are more three car garhgaedsefore. That is why they
looked at changing the front yard coverage. Thé&lides allow you to go up to 32
feet to the lot line.

Commissioner McGleam said he feels that the 22vieeks really well.

Chairman Spinelli asked what is the lot width objsat property.

Mrs. Tate stated it is 90 feet.

Chairman Spinelli asked if the applicant had ineldidhe photos or staff.

Mrs. Tate said those were provided by the applieadtmost of those homes are in
unincorporated Lemont.



Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furtheesiions for staff from the
Commissioners. None responded. He then askempifleant to come up and make
their presentation.

Applicant Presentation

Elliot Slosar, applicant, said they are here tonigldiscuss six feet and whether their
driveway should be provided a variance. Thisnesalt of their landscaper

informing them that the plan they discussed, agtgexh, and paid for was approved
all along. If the variance is declined then thHamily will be forced to incur
significant expenses and end up with a differestiltehan what was promised. He
and his wife have invested a large sum of moneytiwb different phases of their
landscape plan. One was done prior to the driveamaiywas performed by Elemental
Landscape. They were mostly happy with the resultsbecause of that they went
back to them for the driveway. Since the firstgghavent so smooth they figured the
second phase would go just as smoothly.

When their family would come over they would use widest part of the driveway
as they got close to the garage. When they woadtt bp they did not pay attention
to the aggressive reduction of the width. Becanfghis they were ruining the
landscape that they had at the end of the drivewdmat’'s when they decided to
widen the driveway. They went with pavers and ligius installed.

The Village Board will be evaluating an amendmemhow to calculate front lot
coverage. If that passes then the only issuebeithe variance for the width. He
understands that the six feet is a significant estjand feels that the petition they
have submitted exceeds the standards for variati®he variation in issue is in
harmony with the general purpose and intent ofiB®. The plight that their family
faces is unique circumstances and strict enforcemeuld impose exceptional
hardship. The circumstances has to do with a aotdr making promises to them,
that they relied upon and spent thousands of dolldrthey would have known that
this was in violation then they would never haveeld. If they also knew that they
couldn’t have widened the driveway three cars witlen they probably wouldn’t
have done it at all.

Mr. Slosar stated if the Commission looks at theime and their location of their
plot, they will see that they are at the nearettaene of Parker Road. There is an
excessive amount of traffic from residents entetiigcommunity. Their family
would have to park on the street because they amtldit in the driveway. They
believe their home has a unique circumstance assgglto other neighbors deeper
into the community and not presented with the icdfdw of residents. Next, they
are certainly not trying to set precedence by getmgugh this process. The
driveway cost them anywhere between $25,000 and$80 They have incurred
expenses related to this learning process.



There is a third phase to their landscaping thgoisg to start next week and
everything has been approved. They are usingereiift landscaper. It wasn't until
after this process started that they learned tleah&ntal had a different name a few
years ago and went into bankruptcy and createdhélviscompany. They feel that the
hardship was created by an outside influence ah&ynbis wife or him. The outside
influence was the contractor they hired, but theyvjgled the landscape plan that he
had showed them. That is the first time they saavpiat of survey before the
Commission which was totally different. It is hiederstanding that the only reason
why they are here is because a neighbor had irdjalveut the stone porch, which
prompted an inspector to come out who noticed iffierent driveway width. He is
not trying to demean the issue, but they certadidy’t intentionally violate the
ordinance code.

Mr. Slosar said the fourth and fifth factor stagfees with them, that the variation
will not be detrimental to the public welfare ojunous to other property. The
driveway adds value to the community and is bealutift adds to the community and
helps with safety for their guests and other regglef the community. With the
widen driveway their guests can park on the driveauad not in the street with all the
incoming traffic. Staff also agrees that the viaoiawill not alter the essential
character of the locality and should not be a suth&tl detriment to adjacent

property.

Finally, they feel that the variance applicatioassistent with the standards. They
were provided false information by a landscapegtesiprior to determining whether
to construct the driveway. They certainly didmtand to violate any ordinances and
had good faith basis believing that this was ailegite project and design. The
variance they seek will allow their family to mofeeward and not incur costs for
reconstruction. They are not seeking to changeltiveway back. If they knew it
could not be done then they would have saved thestinds of dollars. The
Commission should know that they are doing an addit landscape project starting
Monday with a different landscape company. Thelyrdake sure all the designs
were approved. This was not the only issue theyt Had with Elemental. He asked
the Commission to please vote in favor of the enmea

Chairman Spinelli said that he had mentioned areisgth traffic; he asked if they
had selected this lot.

Mr. Slosar stated they selected the lot primarégduse there was a retention pond
behind the house, which is now a wetland, and tbally wanted privacy behind
their home. This was their first home purchase, they moved out from the city.
They did not realize there would be so much trdffien Parker Road.

Chairman Spinelli said he is sympathetic that thatractor took advantage of them.

Once the contractor received the permit from tHiaye did they see the document at
all.

10



Mr. Slosar stated the first time he saw the documeas when they were at the
Village Hall for a meeting because they receivedtce of violation.

Commissioner Zolecki asked when they submittecagh@ication for permit what
design was in there.

Mr. Slosar said the contractor submitted the appba for permit.

Commissioner Zolecki asked if the signature orgglication was the contractor.
Mr. Slosar stated yes it was.

Mr. Berry said they do take applications from cantors or owners.
Commissioner O’Connor confirmed that the plan teay was for the full driveway.
Mr. Slosar said yes it was.

Commissioner Zolecki asked if the contractor figbmitted it with the 29 foot wide
driveway and during review it was changed.

Mr. Berry stated it looks like during plan revietwias changed.

Commissioner McGleam asked if the permit was gsiied from this plat of survey.
Mr. Berry said they get more information than that.

Chairman Spinelli asked if staff could go to pageo6the PDF where it actually
shows the permit when it was received in March@if2 He asked if the text that is
printed below the owner information was prepringed if it was standard for all
driveway permits.

Mrs. Tate said that is default text on the permit.

Mr. Slosar stated it is not his handwriting on dpplication.

Commissioner Cunningham asked if the applicantdmdcontact with Elemental
since finding out the violation.

Mr. Slosar said that his wife has been dealing wigm regarding other issues.

Commissioner Cunningham asked if they specifidaltyught to their attention the
driveway and what was permitted to what was put in.

Mr. Slosar stated they are aware that they arersgekvariance.

11



Commissioner Cunningham asked if they are seelatigraagainst them.

Mr. Slosar said he feels that if he wasted timerasdurces on file action against
them then they would just file for bankruptcy agamd create a new company. They
are encouraging their neighbors not to use them.

Commissioner O’Connor asked if the contractor maaeadmission and did they
have any intention of trying to make good on this.

Nina Godlewski, applicant, stated the contracterddmitted to making the driveway
wider than what was submitted. They would liké&keéep it the way that it is.

Mr. Slosar said the contractor concedes that hé diad it was not intentionally by
mistake.

Commissioner McGleam asked if the contractor offdoecorrect it if they were
denied the variance.

Mrs. Godlewski stated the contractor could coritediut they would not get back any
of the money that they put in.

Commissioner McGleam asked putting the money taide has the contractor
offered to correct it if they are denied the vacan

Mrs. Godlewski said she is sure they would.

Mr. Slosar stated there is electrical wiring unéeth the entire driveway. He hopes
that the variance is granted. Inthe event ittjshtould potentially cause the entire
driveway to be ripped up to deal with the electrngaing to replace the lights. They
hope this is the last night they have to deal \Eigmental.

Chairman Spinelli asked if the Commission had anyenguestions for the applicant.
None responded. He then asked if there was angpahe audience that wanted to
speak in regards to this public hearing.

Public Comment

None
Chairman Spinelli then called for a motion to cltise public hearing for Case 18-09.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner O’Connor to
close the public hearing for Case 18-09. A voiotewvas taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

12



Plan Commissioner Discussion

Chairman Spinelli said before they discuss thigche would like for staff to make a
change and require both, applicant and contracsagisatures on these applications.
If this business is acting in a deceitful way thieey should be pulling their business
license. The whole purpose of the business licexigeprotect the residents. He is
torn on his decision. He truly feels the applicaas misled based on the drawing
that was submitted and corrected.

Commissioner Zolecki stated he feels that it wasraded after it was submitted. He
can appreciate knowing that the homeowners saidftkaew that they wouldn’t be
allowed to do the driveway like they wanted thesytiwvouldn’t do the driveway at
all.

Chairman Spinelli asked if the inspectors only gbwhen they are called.

Mr. Berry said yes. It is pointless for them to@d until they are ready. The
inspector realized that the final inspection wagenelone.

Chairman Spinelli stated they have to look at civamthe way our building
applications are submitted and require the propestyer to be part of it. It won't
prevent homeowners from being misled, but it migdglp minimize the potential.

Mr. Berry said Lemont did over 1,100 permits lasar unfortunately the
Commission hears about the few problem ones.

Discussion continued on how to prevent this frompgdeaing.

Chairman Spinelli asked if any of the Commissiorted any further questions or
comments. None responded. He then called fortoméor recommendation.

Plan Commission Recommendation

Commissioner Zolecki made a motion, seconded byr@issioner McGleam to
recommend to the Mayor and Board of Trustees appaiCase 18-09 Eliza Lane
Driveway Variation with the following condition:

1. Further pursuit by the Village for retribution frotime installing contractor.

A roll call vote was taken:

Ayes: Zolecki, McGleam, Cunningham, O’Connor, Rialspinelli

Nays: None

Motion passed

Findings of Fact

13



Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ssioner Plahm to
authorize the Chairman to approve the Findingsaat For Case 18-09 as prepared by
staff. A voice vote was taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

C. 18-01 UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS
Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to open thblg hearing for Case 18-01.
Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner O’Connor to
open the public hearing for Case 18-01. A voiceweas taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Staff Presentation

Mrs. Tate said the first action in the Our Homesis@ of the Comprehensive Plan
was to consider the creation of a new zoning diséiimed at allowing detached
single-family home construction on smaller lot® @Besented tonight is the creation
of the new R-5A zoning district. The new residaihsubdivisions that have been
coming in have been falling short of typical Lemamtgle-family lot and dimension
requirements. This will address the modern stytk @ize of desirable new
construction homes with less variations and PUiests from residential home
builders.

For the definition, she had looked at all the ottteinitions and how this one lines up
to that. She then read the definition which ielisin staff's packet. There should be
discussion on whether or not to include attachsaleatial in the R-5A zoning

district. The R-5 is already an attached distaimd the Comprehensive Plan just talks
about the single-family detached, so this needstdiscussed.

Mrs. Tate stated she added a column to Table 10106+ uses and it is basically
mimicking the R-5. There was a column added tod4af@+07-01 Lot and
Dimensional Standards since the last time it wag.sdt was the maximum lot
coverage and she just mimicked what was done fthebther districts.
Chairman Spinelli asked what was the maximum leecage for R-4

Mr. Herman said it was 55%.

Chairman Spinelli stated they do need to discussthen they want to include
attached single-family to the R-5A.

14



Mrs. Tate said the Comprehensive Plan just sayscHetl single-family, but since we
are in an R-5 zoning district it should be discdss&he only advantage would be the
setbacks.

Mr. Berry stated he feels that duplexes shouldllb&vad and was pushing for this in
the R-5A instead of R-4B. He is not sure if he \ddwe in favor of townhomes but
he would be for duplexes. They are seeing motheyh and it gives them the
opportunity to work with developers.

Chairman Spinelli said he thinks the definition gkiosay two-family attached
dwellings. A duplex is usually considered a twaily detached. He asked what
was considered a two-family detached dwelling.

Mr. Herman then read the different definitions.

Chairman Spinelli stated he does not think two-famétached dwellings or
townhomes belong in this new R-5A district.

Mrs. Tate said just like the R-4A they do want pply standards for the district. The
applicability is the same as you find in R-4A. T®emprehensive Plan does talk
about keeping open space with this new districtt taks about the open space under
the Purpose section. Staff wanted to put somethimgre in regards to garages,
since developers could come in without a PUD.dtirasses three-car garages that
are facing the street and the width. Also, it @ddes side car garages that are facing
a street. Lastly, there is verbiage about openespénich is from the PUD codes.

Chairman Spinelli stated in regards to the garégtsere a setback requirement
currently for the other zoning districts betweea fnimary garage and the third car.

Mr. Herman said he does not believe so.

Chairman Spinelli asked what is the purpose ofragldihere.

Mrs. Tate stated it was to give it some depth.

Chairman Spinelli said he doesn’t necessarily di@d. However, if you have an
interior lot facing the street you are penalized have to have three feet of offset. If
you are on a corner lot then you only have to lswee foot offset. He asked what is
the difference since it is still a public street.

Mrs. Tate stated it mostly based on scale and depth

Chairman Spinelli said it should be the same whaths a corner lot or an interior
lot. It will also make it easier for staff.

The Commission agreed upon two feet.

15



Mrs. Tate stated this would conclude her presenmtati

Chairman Spinelli asked if there was anyone inailéience that wanted to speak in
regards to this public hearing.

Public Comment

None
Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to close plblic hearing.

Commissioner Zolecki made a motion, seconded byrGigsioner O’Connor to
close the public hearing for Case 18-01. A voiotewvas taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Plan Commission Recommendation

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were no furthanoeents, then he would call for a
motion for recommendation.

Commissioner O’Connor made a motion, seconded byr@issioner McGleam to

recommend to the Mayor and Board of Trustees appahCase 18-01 with the

following changes:

1. Under 17.05.010 Establishments and Purposes afidsstnumber 7, strike two-
family detached dwellings and townhomes.

2. Under 17.07.050 Standards for the 5-4A Districtdein“C” for Garages, change
setback for third bay to two feet.

A roll call vote was taken:

Ayes: O’Connor, McGleam, Zolecki, Cunningham, Riaspinelli

Nays: None

Motion passed

ACTION ITEMS
A. 18-04 WILLOW POINTE FINAL PUD/PLAT

Staff Presentation

Mrs. Tate said on April 23, 2018 the Village of Lenh approved a preliminary
plat/plan for a 40-unit single-family dwelling urduplex residential planned unit
development. The property was rezoned at that tinie-5 Single-Family Attached
District from R-4 Single-Family Detached District.he development is located at the
southeast corner of 135treet and Parker Road. She then read throughDia

16



exceptions that were part of the Preliminary PUD Btat approval. The Preliminary
approval indicated that they had to turn in cerfdams which are listed in staff's
report and they were submitted. There were ofeciBc conditions which she then
read through.

There were a few changes to the Preliminary PUD g that the applicant is
requesting. One is relief from the requirementdostruct a sidewalk along 131
Street. It wasn't included but it wasn’t specifigaalled out either. Lastly, relief
from Exhibit LS-6 requiring residential drivewayslie at least 6” thick of concrete.
The developer desires to install 4” thick resida@indriveways. On June 12, 2018,
Matthew Dill of Willow Pointe, LLC submitted the plication for Final Plat and they
are the owner of the subject property. They hawveiged all the required
documents.

Mrs. Tate stated the site plan is consistent viighRreliminary PUD; however, there
were some changes that did occur since the reviw the PZC’s review on
February 21, 2018. The developer has removed lexibpilding in the cul-de-sac to
provide more space in the subdivision. A benchgamebo has been added to the
subdivision and more landscape has been addeé tupim space. A safe pedestrian
crossing has been added to Parker Road from Ebzat Gouth of the entrance and
exit to the subdivision.

The Village engineer has reviewed the plans ansliged comments to the applicant.
Some of the requests were to remove window wetlsd®En some of the units. There
is a concern about snow storage in front of Urfitgtzough 28. Many of the
comments ask for note corrections and dimensiomatgsd The Fire Marshall notes
that a two-hour separation wall must be installethieen the units or in-lieu of the
separation wall, the developer can install sprirkie the units. The remaining
comments are requirements of hydrants and addgessin

Mrs. Tate said landscaping has been added anddplaeem easement along the
property perimeter. An overlook bench and landsgawas added to the entrance
near Parker Road. There is a walking path leathireylandscaped gazebo on Lot 21.
Staff has suggested adding more landscaping tofttstreet parking stalls located in
the cul-de-sac island for visitors to shield hegtits. The Village Arborist is
requesting the saved trees indicated on the TreseRsation plan be included on the
Landscape maintenance Plan. The Ecologist haet anfaor comments that have yet
to be addressed.

The homes are proposed to be constructed of beicdrded with fiber cement siding,
arched entryways, brick soldier course lining thedews and architectural shutters.
The rear elevations have been updated since thehBaKihg. Since the application
is substantially conforming to the Preliminary PYaff is recommending approval
with the following condition:

17



1. Address any additional outstanding issues as noté@ comment letter by the
Fire Marshal, Village Arborist, Village Engineerp@sulting Planner and Village
Ecologist.

The applicant and engineer are present this evening

Chairman Spinelli asked if they have to apply 1dte conditions or just respond to
all the conditions.

Mrs. Tate said a lot of them are notes or updgtiags. There has been no feedback
from the applicant that there were any concernsitaiin® comments.

Chairman Spinelli stated there were comments fosnoaw storage in front of units
25 through 28. He asked if this has been resolved.

Mrs. Tate said she thinks that it has been notedcasicern. The applicant’s
engineer might be able to update us tonight on this

Chairman Spinelli stated the staff report had iathd that it is within substantial
compliance with the preliminary plat. He askestdff can elaborate on the new
elevation with lookouts. He asked if perimeteslatould also be lookouts or are
those only interior lots that back up to the wedlanea.

Mrs. Tate said she is not aware of which speatfis. |
Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furtheesiions or comments for staff.
None responded. He then asked if the applicanteglaio come up and make a

presentation.

Applicant Presentation

Matt Dill, Beechen and Dill Homes, said in regatalshe exterior elevations the
majority of the homes on the east and south peeinigie are either look outs or walk
outs. It will all be maintenance free decking anti all match. This will be all
controlled by Beechen and Dill and it will be iretRlOA that it cannot be changed.
As far as a covered patio to break up the monotonghe neighboring residents, on
all of those adjacent buildings they will add ta#er gable. They will also have
signage on the island that there is no parkingefé is more than an inch of snow. It
will also be a maintenance free community so @lglowing for the individual units
will be done by the landscape company. The Villagkdo the main streets.

Chairman Spinelli stated the Village Engineer guesting removal of window wells
on units 2 and 3, between Lot 1 and 2. He ask#eeie was a flood route there.

Mr. Coyne said that is one of the main overflowtesuthere and they agree to do
that.

18



Chairman Spinelli asked if any of the Commissiorexd any questions for the
applicant. None responded. He asked if thereamgiene in the audience that
wanted to speak in regards to this case.

Public Comment

None

Plan Commission Recommendation

Chairman Spinelli stated if there is no furthercdssion then he would recommend a
motion for recommendation.

Commissioner Cunningham made a motion, second€bhymissioner McGleam to
recommend to the Mayor and Board of Trustees appahCase 18-04 Willow
Pointe Final PUD/Plat with the following condition:

1. Address any additional outstanding issues as notda comment letter by the
Fire marshal, Village Arborist, Village Engineemiulting Planner and Village
Ecologist.

A roll call vote was taken:

Ayes: Cunningham, McGleam, Zolecki, O’Connor, Raspinelli

Nays: None

Motion passed

GENERAL DISCUSSION
Commissioner Zolecki asked what are the hoursdosizuction on the weekend.
Mr. Herman said they are 8 am to 7 pm.

Commissioner Zolecki stated they may want to loothat at the next text
amendments.

Chairman Spinelli asked staff to pull up the Resi@# Driveway Standards and look
at the cross section B. There is a tag at th@bothat says you can have a depressed
curb and gutter at the driveway apron. It shoutmbpble say mountable or
depressed; otherwise it shows that someone cahewgurb to depress it. He asked if
there were any further comments.

Jerry Johnson, resident, said when he had hisdmad the contractor came in and
got the permit. He feels in regards to the drivgwablic hearing this evening, the
homeowners should be made to come in and sigmothé permit.

Chairman Spinelli stated the only problem he se¢isat the Village Hall closes at 5
pm and most people work.

19



VI.

VII.

Mr. Johnson said if they want to get it done tHegytwill make the time.
Chairman Spinelli stated he likes the idea th#iefe are any changes to the
submittal then the owner needs to come down t&/illege Hall and initial or sign
the changes.

Discussion continued in regards to permits andiredqsignatures.

Mr. Johnson asked doesn’t the work have to be ceteglwithin 60 days and
shouldn’t the final be called then.

Chairman Spinelli said our inspector should be kimgcon these to see if they are
done.

Mr. Berry stated the new softer and tablets they tiave will help.

Discussion continued in regards to fines on permits

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

None

ADJOURNMENT

Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to adjoure theeting.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner O’Connor to
adjourn the meeting. A voice vote was taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None
Motion passed

Minutes prepared by Peggy Halper

20



21



